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12/02/2024
Dear Josh,
I am writing in response to the concerns raised by Gloucester House in their objections to the planning application for the site of 31 Daleham Gardens. In this letter we seek to clarify the proposals and provide additional analysis of the daylight and sunlight assessment where needed. The following concerns have been raised:

1.0 Disruption and noise during construction

We are currently in dialogue with yourself and Gloucester House about the best way to address this issue. We have not provided a Construction Management Plan with the application as this is typically carried out after planning permission is granted, at the point where the contractor can give input. In principle the CLT are of course happy to engage with Gloucester House School in order to establish reasonable noise limitation thresholds and agree a process for managing these during construction.

2.0 Daylighting of the single storey classroom

As the proposals failed the initial ’25 degree test’ for a number of the neighbouring buildings, including the single storey classroom in the grounds of Gloucester House, further assessment was carried out. The Vertical Sky Component was tested for each window. VSC is expressed as a percentage, where 40% is the maximum achievable on an overcast day. In urban areas, greater than 20% is considered a good value to ensure good daylighting, while less than 10% is considered poor. The VSC for the east facing windows was no less than 80% of their former value, which the BRE guidance states will not have a noticeable impact on daylight within the rooms served by these windows.

The windows in the south elevation failed the VSC test, as they have an overall result of less than 27% and were also less than 80% the former value. These windows serve a single shallow room at the end of the building. The VSC figures for the existing case, based on the condition when the original building was in place, were already low, with an average of about 16%. The revised figures with the proposed building have an average VSC of about 5% so very low. Due to these results, further analysis was carried out using the illuminance method which indicates that the room will still be well daylit, with lux levels well over the recommended 300 Lux across 50% of the floor area, which is recommended for school rooms. This was unexpected given the VSC results, however we would suggest that the VSC was unusually pessimistic in this situation because the windows are assessed as small individual lights, whereas when combined they constitute a large area of glazing serving a small room. In conclusion, the daylighting of this room will remain good if the proposed building is constructed.

3.0 Overlooking of external areas

The overall massing for the proposed building has been developed to provide high quality apartments, and to produce a viable scheme that can support the creation of 50% affordable homes. Justification for the design within the conservation area has been provided elsewhere.

With regards to the overlooking of Gloucester House’s grounds, we would like to clarify the use of the overlooking windows and also put forward some mitigation measures. 

Of the 23 windows overlooking the Gloucester House grounds:

· 5 serve the communal stairwells and so will be infrequently used. These could be specified with obscured glazing, as their primary role is to provide daylighting to the stairs.
· 6 serve bathrooms and so can be specified with obscured glazing

· 3 are secondary windows serving living spaces that have other windows facing south and west. We propose that these are changed to be wide, short windows that are positioned at high level within the rooms. With this change they will provide daylight and cross ventilation to the apartments, and a view of the sky, but no view down into Gloucester House’s grounds. On the typical floors the sill height would be approximately 1.7m above floor level. On the top floor within the sloping roof, the rooflight would be approximately 1.5m above floor level, owing to limits on the rooflight format and construction details. 

This leaves 9 windows from habitable rooms overlooking the grounds, 6 of which serve kitchens and 3 of which serve bedrooms.

4.0 Overshadowing of external areas

BRE guidance requires at least 50% of the area should receive at least 2 hours of sunlight on 21st March. We have updated the assessment to include the whole external area and add the following assessment below:

The proposed building will shade the area a maximum of approximately 14m into the Gloucester House site for some of the day on this date. This means that 46% of the external space will not be shaded by proposed building. 

Of the remaining area, the outside space to the east of the single storey classroom will be mostly unshaded between 8am and 11am. The area to the west of the single storey will be mostly unshaded after 2pm. As such the outside area is unshaded by the proposed building for at least 3 hours, and 46% is unshaded at any time, on the specified date (note this analysis only considers the impact of the proposed building, not the existing trees). The proposal therefore passes the BRE requirement by a considerable margin.

A concern has been raised that the shadow diagrams are inaccurate as they appear to show a flat topped building whereas the proposals have a partial 6th storey in the centre of the building. We have checked the model and can confirm that this has been modelled correctly – the top floor is set back approximately 3.5m from the main external wall and so its shadow does not project out further than the lower floors. Its shadow can be seen on the lower roof of the proposed building.

Yours sincerely,

Alice Hamlin
Associate
Mole Architects
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